From: Andrew.Bush <Andrew.Bush@horsham.gov.uk>

Sent: 02 January 2026 14:56:55 UTC+00:00

To: "Sam.Whitehouse" <Sam.Whitehouse@horsham.gov.uk>

Cc: "Planning" <planning@horsham.gov.uk>

Subject: DC/25/1327 - Land East of Mousdell Close Rectory Lane Ashington RH20 3GS
Attachments: DC 25 1327 2nd.docx

Categories: Consultations

Hi Sam,

Please find attached my second response, with recommended conditions. Any questions just let
me know.

Thanks,

Andy

Andrew Bush

Arboricultural Officer (Planning)
Specialists Team - Strategic Planning

Telephone: 01403 215171
Email: Andrew.Bush@horsham.gov.uk
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HORSHAM DISTRICT COUNCIL CONSULTATION



		TO:

		Horsham District Council – Planning Dept



		LOCATION:

		Land East of Mousdell Close Rectory Lane Ashington



		DESCRIPTION:

		Erection of 74 dwellings with associated access, parking and landscaping.



		REFERENCE:

		DC/25/1327



		RECOMMENDATION:

		Advice/ Modification/ More information



		2nd response 

		Advice 



		SUMMARY OF COMMENTS & RECOMMENDATION: 

The proposed development, as supported by the submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA), Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection Plans (TPP), however, concerns are raised with incursions into Root Protection Areas (RPAs), and poor spatial relationships between retained trees and new dwellings, which are likely to impact on existing trees and give rise to future pressure for robust surgery works, or in the worst case their removal.



The revised Arboricultural Report (ARB), Impact Statement, and Method Statement, when read in conjunction with the submitted tree protection plans, have satisfactorily addressed the concerns previously raised in relation to this application. In particular, the updated documentation now clearly demonstrates how the sensitive works associated with the Root Protection Areas (RPAs) will be undertaken, managed, and supervised throughout the construction process. The proposed methodology provides sufficient detail to ensure that works within and adjacent to RPAs will be carefully controlled, with appropriate protective measures, sequencing, and oversight in place. As a result, it is now considered that the potential impacts on retained trees will be reduced to acceptable and tolerable limits. Accordingly, subject to full compliance with the submitted documents, no objection is raised on arboricultural grounds. 

Drawings Nos LLD3503-ARB-DWG-020 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-021 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-022 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-023 Revision 02 



		MAIN COMMENTS: 

Tree Removals and Surgery Works

One individual tree (T44 – Goat Willow) is proposed for removal to facilitate the widening of the main site access. Due to its roadside location, its loss will be noticeable within the street scene; however, subject to appropriate replacement planting in this area, the visual and environmental impact can be adequately mitigated.



Two hedgerows (H01 – Mixed Species Ornamental Hedgerow, and a section of H41 – Mixed Species Native Hedgerow) are also indicated for full or partial removal. As with T44, their loss can be compensated for through appropriate replacement planting.



Surgery works are proposed for trees T08, T09, T42, T43, and T38. Works involve selective branch removal to provide a minimum clearance of 3.5 m from ground level to crown break to enable construction access. Additionally, the western aspects of trees forming group TG14 will require reduction to align with the new fence line.



Subject to all the surgery works being undertaken in accordance with BS 3998:2010 – Tree Work: Recommendations, I would not have any concerns with the works proposed. 



Site Layout, Post-Development Pressure, and Future Tree Conflicts



Several dwellings, particularly those on the northern and eastern perimeters, are sited near large mature trees whose canopies will overhang the front of the dwelling for unit 54, and over the private rear gardens of several properties on the eastern boundary. This arrangement is likely to create future pressure for pruning or removal due to shading, leaf and debris fall, and perceived safety concerns.



The unit’s most affected on the eastern boundary are Nos. 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 15, where the RPAs of boundary trees significantly extend into main garden areas. On the western boundary, Unit 33 is notably affected by trees T34 and T36, which will restrict natural light to the main garden area, particularly during afternoon hours.



BS5837:2012, Section 5.2.2, emphasises the importance of providing adequate spatial separation between retained trees and new structures to prevent foreseeable conflicts.

The gardens provided are generally small and dominated by RPAs and canopies of retained trees, leaving little usable space for residents and increasing the likelihood of long-term attrition of tree cover. As proposed, the layout is not sustainable in arboricultural terms.

Conserns addressed as best they can. 



Root Protection Area (RPA) Conflicts



Several Category B and C trees and groups identified for retention are shown with building footprints or private gardens extending significantly within their RPAs. BS5837:2012, Clause 5, requires development layouts to be based on accurate tree constraint plans that avoid RPA incursions wherever possible. In places, the layout appears to have been fitted around existing trees without due regard for their rooting requirements, thereby failing the first principle of avoidance.



Affected trees and hedges include H01, T02–T09, T14–T23, T34, T36, T38, a portion of SC39, and T42–T43.



Under BS5837:2012, Section 5.3.1, incursions into RPAs should only occur where overriding justification can be demonstrated, supported by appropriate mitigation. No such justification or mitigation has been provided. Given the undeveloped, greenfield nature of the site, there appears to be no reasonable justification for development within RPAs of retained on or off-site trees.



Another observation regarding potential future conflicts with Root Protection Areas (RPAs) arises where the RPAs of the eastern boundary trees extend considerably into the main garden areas of plots 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 15. Although, for the most part, the RPAs are shown to remain free from building activity during the construction phase of the proposals, consideration should also be given to the likely post-development activities within these garden areas. Such activities may include the creation of patios, shed bases, raised planters, flower beds, and additional planting, all of which would fall directly within the RPAs. Therefore, although the built form of the proposed dwellings may lie outside the RPAs of the trees in question, there are foreseeable post-development pressures and associated root damage and ground compaction risks to such areas. Conserns addressed 	



[image: ]Furthermore, the RPAs for T42 (Sycamore) and T43 (Oak) have been plotted as standard circular areas extending beneath Rectory Lane, which is best described as being an inhospitable rooting environment. Rooting is therefore more likely concentrated southwards within the site and potentially beneath Unit 54. The current circular RPAs for both trees do not reflect this, and consequently, in my opinion, underestimate the potential impact of the proposed development and its associated infrastructure on T42 and T43. The RPA for these trees needs to be amended to better consider the long-standing relationship that T42 and T43 will have had with the engineered road to the north, and the impact this will have had on any significant root development in this area under the road, and with the site. Conserns addressed. 

 

BS5837:2012, Paragraph 4.6.2 advises, - The RPA for each tree should initially be plotted as a circle centred on the base of the stem. Where pre-existing site conditions or other factors indicate that rooting has occurred asymmetrically, a polygon of equivalent area should be produced. Modifications to the shape of the RPA should reflect a soundly based arboricultural assessment of likely root distribution.

An additional concern regarding conflicts with Root Protection Areas (RPAs) is where the RPAs of the eastern boundary trees extend considerably into the main garden areas of plots 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, and 15. Although, for the most part, the RPAs are shown to remain free from building activity during the construction phase of the proposals, consideration should also be given to the likely post-development activities within these garden areas. Such activities may include the creation of patios, shed bases, raised planters, flower beds, and additional planting, all of which would fall directly within the RPAs. Therefore, although the built form of the proposed dwellings may lie outside the RPAs of the trees in question, post-development pressures and associated risks to these areas are foreseeable and would be substantial. Conserns addressed. 



The proposed development encroaches on the Root Protection Areas (RPAs) of several off-site trees, as shown on the plan below. Although these trees are of limited individual quality, collectively they form an important visual and screening feature for the adjacent property, making their retention desirable for the adjacent property. Construction activity within the RPAs has the potential to adversely affect tree health through soil compaction, root damage, or changes to ground levels. The use of above-ground construction techniques in this area would be necessary, as the AIA and tree protection plan highlights.

Conserns addressed. 
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Proposed Ditch Along Southern Boundary

The proposed drainage ditch along the southern site boundary appears to intersect the RPAs of mature boundary trees associated with the adjacent woodland belt. No root investigation, hydrological assessment, or construction methodology appears to have been provided to demonstrate compliance with BS5837:2012, Section 7.7, which requires avoidance of root severance and ground disturbance. Excavation of a continuous ditch in this location poses a high risk of root damage and potential alteration of local hydrology, leading to long-term decline of the boundary trees. More information is needed on this aspect of the scheme. Conserns addressed. 

Conclusion and Recommendation



The current layout does not fully align with key principles of BS5837:2012, particularly in relation to the avoidance of RPA incursions and provision of sufficient spatial separation between retained trees and new dwellings. The design places pressure on existing tree cover, creating foreseeable future conflicts and a likelihood of tree loss over time. Layout modification should be sought, and additional supporting information should be requested before the scheme can be considered acceptable in arboricultural terms.





		[bookmark: _Toc510608684][bookmark: _Toc511054247][bookmark: _Toc522546941]ANY RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS: Yes – 



[bookmark: _Toc152238681][bookmark: _Toc152239205][bookmark: _Toc152245555]6.8	Arboricultural Method Statement - Implementation

Regulatory Condition: All works shall be executed in full accordance with the submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment/Method Statement - Land East of Mousdell Close, Rectory Lane, Ashington prepared by Lizard Landscape Design and Ecology (LLDE), On Behalf of: Rocco Homes, Reference - LLD3503-ARB-REP-001 Revision: 2: dated 27/11/25



Reason:  To ensure the successful and satisfactory protection of important trees, shrubs and hedges on the site in accordance with Policies 30 and 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).



Pre-commencement Condition: No development shall commence, including demolition pursuant to the permission granted, ground clearance, or bringing equipment, machinery or materials onto the site, until the following preliminaries have been completed in the sequence set out below:



1. All trees on the site shown for retention on approved drawing number Tree Protection Plan, Drawings numbered: LLD3503-ARB-DWG-020 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-021 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-022 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-023 Revision 02, dated 27/11/25-  as well as those off-site whose root protection areas ingress into the site, shall be fully protected throughout all construction works by tree protective fencing affixed to the ground in full accordance with section 6 of BS 5837 'Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction - Recommendations' (2012). 



1. Once installed, the fencing shall be maintained during the course of the development works and until all machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Areas so fenced off shall be treated as zones of prohibited access and shall not be used for the storage of materials, equipment or machinery in any circumstances. No mixing of cement, concrete, or use of other materials or substances shall take place within any tree protective zone, or close enough to such a zone that seepage or displacement of those materials and substances could cause them to enter a zone.



1. Before any work begins on site, the person(s) responsible for supervising the works must meet the Arboricultural Officer of the Local Planning Authority, on site, so the Arboriculturist Officer can supervise that the tree protection measures have been installed in accordance with the approved drawing number Tree Protection Plan, Drawings numbered: LLD3503-ARB-DWG-020 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-021 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-022 Revision 02, LLD3503-ARB-DWG-023 Revision 02, dated 27/11/25. 



1.  Any trees or hedges on the site which die or become damaged during the construction process shall be replaced with trees or hedging plants of a type, size and in positions agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 



Reason: As this matter is fundamental to the acceptable delivery of this permission, in the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015).



Regulatory condition relating to plots/units No. 6 – 16 



Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No2) (England) Order 2015 (or any order amending or revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification) no development falling within Class F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the order shall be erected constructed or placed within the curtilage of the dwelling, unless permission is otherwise granted by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to an application for the purpose. 



Reason: To ensure the successful and satisfactory protection of important irreplaceable habitats, such as the nearby Ancient Woodland in accordance with Policy 33 of the Horsham District Planning Framework (2015)















		[bookmark: _Hlk132884140]NAME: 

		Andy Bush Arboricultural Officer 



		DEPARTMENT: 

		Strategic Planning (Specialist Team)



		DATE: 

		27/10/25 02/01/26
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